
AGENDA FOR THE REGULAR MEETING 

OF THE CORPORATE AUTHORITIES OF THE 

VILLAGE OF CAMPTON HILLS 

 

March 5, 2019 

7:00 P.M. 

CAMPTON TOWNSHIP COMMUNITY CENTER 

5N082 OLD LAFOX ROAD 

Campton Hills, IL 

1. Call to Order 

 

2. Roll Call 

 

3. Pledge of Allegiance 

 
4. Swearing in of full-time Officer Robert Wells 

 

5. Public Comments – Sign-up sheets are at the rear of the room. Please limit remarks to 3 

minutes per person and please do not repeat topics previously discussed; total time 

allotted is 30 minutes.  Please note, questions will not be answered during this time. 

 

6. Consent Agenda [By a single unanimous vote, called an omnibus vote, the Board may 

approve a number of unrelated items. There may be no discussion, but any Trustee may 

remove any one or more items from the Consent Agenda, whereupon that item goes on 

the agenda below.] 

a. Motion to approve the minutes of the February 19, 2019 Regular Meeting 

b. Motion to approve payment of bills per Warrant List #19-21 
c. Motion to approve the Fiscal Year 2019-2020 Meeting calendar 

d. Motion to approve the appointment of Kyle Wright as temporary Chair of the 

Community Relations Commission 
e. Motion to appoint Lauren Mohr to the Community Relations Commission to fill a 

vacated term to expire March 7, 2020 

f. Motion to appoint Janet Burson to the Community Relations Commission to fill a 

vacated term to expire May 16, 2020 

 

7. Action Items 

a. Motion to approve Ordinance 19-02 Amending Section 5-1-2c of the Village 

Code Regarding Open Burning of Landscape Waste  

b. Motion to approve Resolution # 19-04 to form a 2020 Census Complete Count 

Committee 

c. Motion to approve the purchase of a K-9 dog for cost not to exceed $13,200 

d. Motion to enter into a Full Managed Complete Care IT services agreement 

with Helping Hand IT 

 

8. Discussion Items 

a. Road Resurfacing – Campton Township Highway District 

b. Legislative Counsel Usage 

c. FY 2019-20 Budget Process Update (Discuss Possible Workshop Dates) 

d. Item for future consideration:  

i. Strategic Plan Goals Review   

ii. 401k Plan Administrator (Employer Defined Contribution Plan- Police) 

 



9. Additional Items from the Village President, Trustees, Village Administrator, Village 

Attorney or Staff  

 

10. CLOSED SESSION:  Move that the Village Board go into closed session as permitted 

by the Open Meetings Act to discuss one or more of the following matters: 

a. Litigation that is filed and pending or is probable or imminent. 2(c)(11) 

b. Appointment, employment, compensation, discipline, performance, or dismissal of 

specific employees or officials, including legal counsel. 2(c)(1) & (3) 

 

11. Action pertaining to closed session 

 

12. Adjournment 



OATH OF OFFICE 

Police Officer 

"I Robert Wells, do solemnly swear or affirm that I will support the 
Constitution of the United States, and the Constitution of the State of 
Illinois, and the Ordinances of the Village of Campton Hills, and that I 
will faithfully discharge the duties of the office of Police Officer 
according to the best of my ability." 

Dated: this 51h day of March, 2019 

Robert Wells 

Subscribed and sworn to before me 
by the above named Police Officer 
of the Village of Campton Hills, Illinois. 

Notary Public 

Filed in the official records of the 
Village Campton Hills this 5th day 
of March, 2019. 

Vanessa Quail 
Village Clerk 

'i 



Village of Campton Hills IL 

Invoice Number Description 

Ancel Glink Diamond etal 
02132019 Corporate, Zoning, Employment, 
02132019 Com cast Litigation 
02132019 Norton Lakes 

Total Ancel Glink Diamond etal: 

B&F Construction Code Services Inc 

Warrant List 19-21 
Report dates: 2/15/2019-2/28/2019 

GL Account and Title 

1 0-11-5330 General Legal Service 
1 0-11-5340 Litigation Svcs 
1 0-31-5330 Legal Services 

11030 January 2019 Plan review/lnspecti 10-31-5350 Inspection Services 

Total B&F Construction Code Services Inc: 

Campton Township Highway District 
VCH 190219 Plato Road Plowing/Salting 2/5, 2/ 
VCH 190219-B Plato Road Plowing/Salting 2/17, 
VCH 190221 Plato Road Plowing/Salting 2/21/2 
VCH 19219-A Plato Road Plowing/Salting 2/11, 

Total Campton Township Highway District: 

Civic Systems LLC 
CVC17279 Semi-Annual Software Support Fe 
eve 17622 1/2 of software payment 

Total Civic Systems LLC: 

Comcast Business 

13-00-5160 Mntc Svc-Snow Removal 
13-00-5160 Mntc Svc-Snow Removal 
13-00-5160 Mntc Svc-Snow Removal 
13-00-5160 Mntc Svc-Snow Removal 

10-11-5370 Information Tech 
20-00-5001 IT Infrastructure Project 

02102019 2/14 to 3-13; Acct 8771 20 004 02 10-11-5520 Telephone 
02102019 2/14 to 3-13; Acct 8771 20 004 02 10-21-5520 Telephone 

Total Cost 

5,850.00 
490.00 
100.00 

6,440.00 

3,190.61 

3,190.61 

5,821.00 
4,062.00 
2,660.00 
4,910.00 

17,453.00 

2,840.00 
18,175.00 

21,015.00 

31.32 
13.42 

:£b 
Page: 1 

Feb 27, 2019 02:37PM 



Village of Campton Hills IL 

Invoice Number Description 

Total Corneas! Business: 

GovTempsUSA LLC 
2725116 Rebekah Flakus Weeks 2/10/201 
2725116 Ron Searl Weeks 2/10/2019 & 2/1 

Total GovTempsUSA LLC: 

Hayes Home Improvements Inc 
32708 Repair HVAC 

Total Hayes Home Improvements Inc: 

Logsdon Office Supply 

Warrant List 19-21 
Report dates: 2/15/2019-2/28/2019 

GL Account and Title 

10-11-5391 ADMIN CONTRACTS 
10-11-5391 ADMIN CONTRACTS 

1 0-11-5110 Building/Equip Maintenance 

1049148 Binders paper clips other office su 10-11-6510 Office Supplies 

Total Logsdon Office Supply: 

Municipal Clerks of Illinois 
2019 MEMBER membership dues 2019 10-11-561 0 Dues and Subscriptions 

Total Municipal Clerks of Illinois : 

Notary Public Association 
T JOHNSON03- Tracy Johnson Notory renewal 03 10-11-5610 Dues and Subscriptions 

Total Notary Public Association : 

Ready Refresh 
09B012600912 water for office 10-11-6510 Office Supplies 

Total Cost 

44.74 

3,220.00 
4,141.75 

7,361.75 

214.00 

214.00 

38.50 

38.50 

65.00 

65.00 

54.00 

54.00 

29.94 

Page: 2 
Feb 27, 2019 02:37PM 



Village of Campton Hills IL 

Invoice Number Description 

Total Ready Refresh : 

Trailside Auto Repair Inc 
1 0752 Fleet # 6 engineer analyze & valv 
1 0755 Fleet #7 Oil change & tire rotation 

Total Trailside Auto Repair Inc: 

Wasco Sanitary District 

Warrant List 19-21 
Report dates: 2/15/2019-2/28/2019 

GL Account and Title 

10-21-5130 Main! Svc-Vehicle 
10-21-5130 Main! Svc-Vehicle 

112468 12/10/2018-2/10/2019 water & Se 10-11-5710 Utilities 
112468 12/10/2018-02/10/2019 Water & S 10-21-5710 Utilities 

Total Wasco Sanitary District: 

Grand Totals: 

Total Cost 

29.94 

193.25 
114.31 

307.56 

93.10 
39.90 

133.00 

56,347.10 

Page: 3 
Feb 27, 2019 02:37PM 



Village of Campton Hills IL Warrant List 19-21 
Report dates: 2/15/2019-2/28/2019 

Invoice Number Description GL Account and Title Total Cost 

Payroll Costs for the 2/22/2019 Pay Check Date 

Payroll 

Administration 
Elected Officials 
Police- Full Time 
Police - Part Time 

Total Payroll 

$2,250.50 
$3,279.17 
$13,068.99 
$8,931.76 

$27,530.42 

Employer Paid Benefits 

IMRF- Employer Portion - Pending access $0.00 
IPBC- Employer Portion- monthly $4,514.22 

Police Pension- Employer Portion $9,000.00 
FICA, Medicare & Other Liabilities $1,829.24 

Total Employer Paid Benefits $15,343.46 

Village President----------------------

I CERTIFY THAT THIS WARRANT AS LISTED AND APPROVED BY THE VILLAGE PRESIDENT WERE DULY 
AUTHORIZED FOR PAYMENT BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE VILLAGE OF CAMPTON HILLS. 

Village Clerk 

Page: 4 
Feb 27, 2019 02:37PM 

















Subject: Re: Volunteering @ Campton Hills 

2/27/2019 10:56:34 AM Central Standard Time 

janet@bursons.net 

Date: 

To: turnernw9(tl)aol.com 

Hello Nonn, 

It was nice to meet you and the rest of the committee last night. 
I would be be pleased to join the Community Relations committee and help with your initiatives. 

Thanks, 

Janet Burson 

On Feb 21,2019, at !0:40AM, .u:rnc:nny2_ilil'.lLc:om wrote: 

Hi: 

Look forward to meeting you and showing the community projects we implement. 

Norm 

Hi, 

' Thank you Nonn. 
· I will see you then :) 

·Janet 

On Feb 20,2019, at 11:01 AM, wrote: 

Janet: 

We have received your application to become a volunteer with Campton Hills. I am 
on the Community 
Relations Commission. We have monthly meeting the 4th Tuesday of each month @ 
6.p.m 

I would like to invite you to attend our Feb 26 meeting to observe our programs. 

Advise if you will be attending. The meeting location is @ the Village Hall on 40w270 
La Fox Rd. The building is across from the Old Towne Restaurant. 

Norm Turner 
Campton Hills Community Relations Commission Volunteer 
847-464-1109 . ' 



To: 

From: 

Date: 

Subject: 

Issue: 

Village of Campton Hills 
Board Summary Memo 

Village President and Board of Trustees 

Ron Searl, Village Administrator 

March5,2019 

Bum Ordinance Changes - Public Bodies Agenda#: 7a 

Amend Section 5-1-2, entitled "Nuisances Declared," of the Campton Hills Village Code 

Background/Reasoning: 
• The Campton Township Open Space program has been actively preparing the Gray Willow farm 

property to be replanted as prairie by burning trees and brush 
• A resident living near the Grey Willow Farm has complained to the Village that the Campton 

Township Open Space program is violating the Village's open burning ordinance by burning 
large amounts of wet brush and landscape waste. The neighbor alleges !bat the smoke is so 
pervasive that he can smell inside his house. 

Supporting Documents: 
• Ordinance 19-02 Amending Section 5-1-2c of the Village Code Regarding Open Burning of 

Landscape Waste 

Budget: 
TBD 

Action Requested: 
• Discuss and consider and a motion to approve Ordinance 19-02 Amending Section 5-1-2c of the 

Village Code Regarding Open Burning of Landscape Waste 



Ordinance No. 0-19-02 

AN ORDINANCE 
AMENDING SECTION 5-1-2C OF THE VILLAGE CODE 

REGARDING OPEN BURNING OF LANDSCAPE WASTE 

WHEREAS, the Village President and Board of Trustees desire to amend the provisions 
of the Campton Hills Village Code pertaining to open burning of landscape waste to incorporate 
an exception for brush burning by governmental entities, as set forth in this Ordinance. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the President and Board of Trustees of 
the Village of Campton Hills, Kane County, Illinois, as follows: 

Section 1. The above recitals are incorporated into this Ordinance by reference. 

Section 2. Subsection C, entitled "Open Burning of Landscape Waste," of Section 5-1-2, 
entitled "Nuisances Declared," of the Campton Hills Village Code is hereby amended as follows 
(text to be removed is shown as striekeH and text to be added is shown as double-underlined): 

"C. Open Burning Of Landscape Waste: Any and all burning in the village 
shall be in accordance with the following restrictions: 

I. The open burning of brush shall occur only on the property upon 
which the brush was generated subject to the following 
restrictions: 

a. Burning is permitted only on sunny days between nine o'clock 
(9:00) A.M. and three o'clock (3:00) P.M. 

b. Burning is not permitted when the wind is in excess of ten (I 0) 
miles per hour. 

c. Burning is not permitted within twenty feet (20') of any 
building, structure, property line, or combustible material. 

d. Burning is not permitted when it is determined and announced 
by the county health department that inversion conditions or an 
ozone alert exists. 

e. Brush shall be dry when burned. except when burning is 
performed by a government entitv on government propertv 
in connection with habitat reclamation or maintenance 
pursuant to a permit from the fire protection district. if 
applicable. and upon notice to the village police 
department. 

f. Burning is not permitted on public or private roads, alleys, 
sidewalks or easements. 

g. All open burning must be supervised until the fire is 
extinguished. 

I 



h. A fire extinguisher or garden hose or water source shall be 
available at the burning site. 

1. It is the responsibility of the individual conducting the burning 
and the owner of the property to satisfactorily determine that 
there is compliance with all conditions upon burning as noted 
in this subsection C I during any burning. 

2. The terms and provisions of this chapter shall not apply to any 
burning of prairie plants for purposes of habitat reclamation; 
provided, that those performing controlled prairie burning must 
receive the proper permits from their fire protection district, if 
applicable, and notify the village police department. 

3. The terms and provisions of this chapter shall not apply to the 
burning of brush for purposes of domestic fireplaces or cooking or 
external fireplaces, or to self-contained outdoor wood burning 
devices or fireplaces. 

4. Notwithstanding subsection Clc of this section, the remammg 
terms and provisions of this chapter shall not apply to the open 
burning of brush for purposes of recreational fires. 

5. The terms and provisions of this chapter shall not apply to the open 
burning of brush for purposes of ceremonial fires; provided, that 
notice of any ceremonial fire has been given to the fire protection 
district, if applicable, serving the area where the fire is to take 
place as well as notification to the village police department. 
Failure to notifY the applicable fire protection district and police 
department and obtain permission prior to conducting a ceremonial 
fire utilizing brush shall be deemed a violation of this chapter. 

6. The open burning of landscape waste and/or other materials, with 
the exception of brush, is prohibited in the village except for those 
living within the 60119 U.S. postal service zip code. If the state of 
Illinois expands its vehicle emission testing program to include the 
60119 zip code, this prohibition shall automatically apply to the 
area included in the vehicle emission testing program. The open 
burning of landscape waste shall be subject to the provisions of 
subsection Cl of this section." 

Section 3. This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from after its passage, 
approval, and publication in the manner provided by law. 

Passed this ____ day of _____ , 2019 pursuant to a roll call vote as follows: 

Trustee Susan P. George 
Trustee Nick Girka 

AYES NAYES ABSENT ABSTAIN 



Trustee Mike Millette 
Trustee Mike O'Dwyer 
Trustee Michael Tyrrell 
Trustee Wendy White Eagle 
President Harry Blecker 

APPROVED this ___ day of ____ , 2019 

Harry Blecker, Village President 
(SEAL) 

ATTEST: 
Vanessa Quail, Village Clerk 

3 



 

Village of Campton Hills 

Board Summary Memo 
 

To: Village President and Board of Trustees 

 

From:  Ron Searl, Village Administrator 

 

Date:  March 5, 2019 

 

Subject: Complete Count Committee- Census 2020   Agenda #: 7b 

 
 

Issue: 

Create an Ad Hoc Complete Count Committee  

 

Background/Reasoning:  

• Every ten (10) years, the U.S. Census Bureau conducts a decennial Census.  

• To assist with that effort, they ask each community to create an Ad Hoc Complete Count 

Committee (CCC). 

• As stated on the U.S. Census Bureau’s web site, the reason for the 2020 decennial census: 

“is to count everyone once, only once, and in the right place.”   

• The goal in creating a CCC is to achieve cross section representation of each community 

that will position the census count to be best and most accurate count that can be made.   

• This is especially important to us (Campton Hills) because we rely so heavily on “per 

capita” revenues as primary revenue sources in the absence of property taxes:  

o Income Tax 

o State Use Tax 

o Motor Fuel Tax  

 

 

Supporting Documents: 

Resolution 19-03 A Resolution Creating A Census 2020 Complete Count Committee to Plan and 

Conduct Local Educational Initiatives, Publicity and Promotional Activities to Increase 

Community Awareness and Participation in the 2020 Census 

 

 

Budget: 

• Approximately $2,000 for publicity purposes 

 

 

Action Requested: 

Motion to approve Resolution 19-04 A Resolution Creating A Census 2020 Complete Count 

Committee to Plan and Conduct Local Educational Initiatives, Publicity and Promotional 

Activities to Increase Community Awareness and Participation in the 2020 Census 



R-19-04 

 

 

A RESOLUTION CREATING A CENSUS 2020 COMPLETE COUNT COMMITTEE 

TO PLAN AND CONDUCT LOCAL EDUCATIONAL INITIATIVES, PUBLICITY 

AND PROMOTIONAL ACTIVITIES TO INCREASE COMMUNITY AWARENESS 

AND PARTICIPATION IN THE 2020 CENSUS 

 

WHEREAS, the United States of America has performed a nationwide census every ten 

years since 1790, with the last census being in 2010; and 

 

WHEREAS, an accurate census is essential for the allocation of representatives to serve 

in the legislative bodies of the U.S. House of Representatives, the Illinois State Legislature, and 

within the Village of Campton Hills voting districts; and 

 

WHEREAS, the more informed that residents become about the 2020 census operations, 

the better their understanding of the census process becomes, thus increasing their willingness 

to the 2020 Census; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Census Bureau is not permitted to publicly release responses furnished 

by any individual, or on behalf of an individual, or release information to other governmental 

agencies, including the Internal Revenue Service, the Immigration and Naturalization Service, 

law enforcement agencies or welfare agencies. In addition, per the Federal Cybersecurity 

Enhancement Act of 2015, census data is protected from cybersecurity risks through screening 

of the systems that transmit this data; and 

 

WHEREAS, the purpose of the Complete Count Committee will be to advise and assist 

the Village of Campton Hills in obtaining the most accurate and complete population count for 

Census 2020 by increasing the number of Village responses through a focused, structured 

neighbor-to-neighbor program. The committee will also utilize the local knowledge, expertise 

and influence of each committee member to design and implement a census awareness 

campaign targeted to the Village of Campton Hills community. 

 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED by the Village Board of the Village of 

Campton Hills that: 

 

1. A Census 2020 Complete Count Committee is hereby established to advise and assist the 

Village of Campton Hills in obtaining the most accurate and complete population count 

for Census 2020. 

 

2. The Committee shall discuss and formulate strategies and techniques, working with 

Village staff and census bureau officials, to enhance and increase the response rate to 

Census 2020. The Committee shall be responsible for planning and conducting local 

educational initiatives, and for preparing of obtaining posters, flyers and handouts for use 

by the media and others. The Committee may also prepare materials for public service 

announcements. 

 

3. The Committee members shall serve from March 2019 through and including June 2020 at 

which time the Committee, having completed its work, shall dissolve, unless extended by 

the Village Board. No resolution dissolving or rescinding the committee is necessary. 

 

4. Meetings. The Committee shall meet at least every three months (quarterly) but may 

meet more often as needed. 



 

Passed this ________ day of ________________ 2019 by roll call vote as follows: 

 

AYES  NAYES ABSENT ABSTAIN 

Trustee Susan P. George         ______ 

Trustee Nick Girka           

Trustee Mike Millette           

Trustee Mike O’Dwyer          

Trustee Michael Tyrrell          

Trustee Wendy White Eagle          

President Harry Blecker           

 

 

APPROVED this ________day of ___________, 2019 

 

             

     Harry Blecker, Village President 

 

          (SEAL) 

ATTEST:        

  Village Clerk  

 

 



 

 

 

Village of Campton Hills 

Board Summary Memo 
 

To: Village President and Board of Trustees     

 

From:  Ron Searl, Village Administrator 

 

Date:  March 5, 2019 

 

Subject:   K9 Dog Purchase         Agenda #: 7c 

    

 
 

Issue: 

Purchase of K9 Dog. 

 

Background/Reasoning: 

• The Police Department has developed a K9 Dog program and presented same to the Village 

Board.   

• After the discussion staff was asked put on the next agenda (March 5, 2019) an item to consider 

approving the purchase of a K9 Dog.

 

Supporting Documents: 

• Purchase Agreement (to be distributed) 

 

Budget: 

• $13,200: the cost for the dog and training is going to be reimbursed to the Village through donations. 

 

Action Requested: 

• Motion to approve the purchase of a K9 Dog and training for an amount not to exceed $13,200.   



TO: James Levand, Campton Hills Police Department 
FROM: Paul Pomazal, Police Canine Training Director, TOPS Kennels 
RE: TOPS 8 Week Basic Canine Officer Program 

The TOPS Basic Canine Officer Program is divided into three stages: 
1 . Canine Selection 
2. Canine Pretraining 
3. Team Training 

In the first stage prospective canines are evaluated and selected for the Canine 
Program. The preferred prospect is an untrained male German Shepherd, 
commonly a European import, between the ages of 12 and 24 months. Each 
candidate must pass a complete physical examination, which includes hip and 
elbow x-rays. TOPS will consider alternative breeds for the Canine Program 
upon request. 

Selected canines will begin stage two, a 10 week in-kennel pretraining program. 
Upon completion, each canine will be proficient in on-lead and off-lead obedience 
and basic tracking and narcotics detection, as well as having a strong foundation 
in article searching and obstacle course confidence. 

Stage three is the 380 hour, 8 week program at TOPS Kennels and surrounding 
training areas. The handler will be paired with a canine partner, specifically 
selected to compliment his/her personality and home environment and meet the 
needs of the Department. The canine and handler will work together to develop 
into a team proficient in all phases of pretraining as well as area searching, 
building searching and handler protection. The program includes 77 hour of 
class instruction and discussion devoted to introducing each phase of training 
and covering topics including canine wellness, care and feeding, record keeping 
and report writing, court preparation and testimony, and the legal aspects of 
developing and implementing a canine program. 

Upon completing the TOPS Basic Canine Officer Program the team will have 
earned certification through North East Multi-Regional Training, Inc. (NEMRT) in 
all phases of training. Narcotics detection training is conducted in compliance 
with P.A. 97-0469 (50 ILCS 705/10.12) for Initial Certification through the Illinois 
Law Enforcement Training and Standards Board. 

The cost of the TOPS Basic Canine Officer Program is $13,200.00, which 
includes the pretrained canine, canine work gear, health/grooming equipment 
and the 8 week training course with notebooks and materials. Also included is 
the first 3 months maintenance training provided by TOPS Kennels. 

TOPS Kennels guarantees the canine's physical condition against defects for a 
period of one year. Further, the performance of all TOPS-maintained canines is 



guaranteed for a period of 18 months, during which time a performance 
deficiency will be immediately addressed by a TOPS trainer and Director. If the 
problem cannot be resolved, TOPS Kennels will replace the canine and enroll the 
handler and new canine in the next available class. The only cost to the 
department would be transportation and food/lodging expenses. 

To register for the TOPS Basic Canine Officer Program contact North East Multi
Regional Training, Inc., 355 Smoke Tree Plaza, North Aurora, IL, 60542-1718, 
(630) 896-8860 (office), (630) 896-4422 (fax). No registration or billing is done 
through TOPS Kennels. 

For additional information, please contact Paul Pomazal, TOPS Police Canine 
Training Director at (847) 207-9144 (cell) or TOPS owners, Alex and Paula 
Rothacker at (847) 223-2822 (office) or (847) 561-1740 (cell). 

Thank you for inquiring about our program. 

Alex and Paula Rothacker 
TOPS Owners/Trainers 

Paul Pomazal 
Director/Instructor 



To: 

From: 

Date: 

Subject: 

Issue: 

Village of Campton Hills 
Board Summary Memo 

Village President and Board of Trustees 

Ron Searl, Village Administrator 

March 5, 2019 

Full Management Complete Care IT Services Agreement 

"Complete Care" service agreement with Helping Hand IT 

Background/Reasoning: 

Agenda#: 7d 

• Recently the Chief and I met with Dave Eshoo, Helping Hands IT to discuss our service call 
and cost history 

• The result of that meeting was discussion about how moving to a Full Management Complete 
Care IT Service Agreement would save the Village money moving forward 

• Currently, the Village pays on a per call basis 

Supporting Documents: 
• Service Agreement Amendment (to be distributed) 

Budget: 
• Will reduce the budget impact 

Action Requested: 
Motion to approve the Full Management Complete Care IT Services Agreement 



Helping Hand IT Services & Networking, Inc. Estimate 
40W270 LaFox Road, Suite A 
St. Charles, JL 60175 Date Estimate# 

Phone:630-940-1718 Fax: 630-940-1720 
www.helpinghand-it.com 1/18/2019 12269 

Name I Address Please note the following: This is an estimate and not a 
Village of Campton Hills firm bid. Your labor pricing could go up or down 
Attn: Mr. Harry Blecker depending on the actual time it takes. 
40W270 LaFox Road (Suite-B) 
Campton Hills, IL 60175 

For HHIT's complete estimate terms, please visit 

630-584-5700 www.helpinghand-it.com/terms 

P.O. No. Terms Rep 

Verbal: TBD Net 15 DE 

Item 

Scope of Work 

Description 

Scope of Work: Full Managed Complete Care for The Village of 
Campton Hills 

Special Notes: 

Current Dell Server Warranty will Expires on July 8, 2021 
Will review the current server and make a decision for 2020 budget. 

If you purchase a new computer or new software program. Or anything 
which defines new, we will add to your contract moving forward. 

FOB 

Saint Charles 

Qty Cost Total 

0.00 

Managed Care HH-IT Full Complete Care Workplace 1,223.99 1,223.99 

We'll help you stop worrying what your IT technician is costing you while 
. !! 

Coverage for the following equipment: 

Police Department: 

1) 6-0ffice workstations/Laptops 
2) !-Office server. 
3) !-Special Software: CrimeStar 

Village Department: 

I) 7-0ffice workstations/Laptops 
2) l-Office server. 
3) !-Special Software: Caselle Software 

Share Equipment: 

I) !-Office Router 
2) !-Office Firewall 
3) 2-0ffice Switches 
4) 1-Printers (Connectivity issues only) 

Estimates containing only materials do not include labor that may become necessary in relation to said 
materials. This labor will be considered billable at HHIT's current rates, which can be found at 

www.helpinghand·it.com/rates 

Page 1 

Subtotal 



Helping Hand IT Services & Networking, Inc. 

40W270 LaFox Road, Suite A 
St. Charles, IL 60 I 75 
Phone: 630-940-1718 Fax: 630-940-1720 
www.helpinghand-it.com 

Estimate 
Date Estimate# 

1/18/2019 12269 

Name I Address Please note the following: This is an estimate and not a 
Village of Campton Hills firm bid. Your labor pricing could go up or down 
Ann: Mr. Harry Blecker depending on the actual time it takes. 
40W270 LaFox Road (Suite-B) 
Campton Hills, IL 60175 

For HHIT's complete estimate terms, please visit 

630-584-5700 www.helpinghand-it.com/terms 

P.O. No. Terms Rep 

Verbal: TBD Net 15 DE 

Item Description 

Products Included: 

I) MalwareBytes Workstations 
2) MalwareBytes Server 
3) Monitoring, Anti-Virus Protection Workstations 
4) Monitoring, Anti-Virus Protection Server 
5) Veeam Backup Software Server 
6) Microsoft Hosted Exchange Plan #I & Plan #2 Licenses 
7) Microsoft Office 365 Business Licenses 
8) Sonic Wall Renewals 

Basic breakdown of services for Full Complete Care Monthly: 

Weekly maintenance and reboots 3-times a week. 
Daily Patch management server and workstations. 
Server, Workstation & Laptop System monitoring 

travel fees 
Remote call service 
Onsite call service 
Inshop service 

New hardware & software Onsite installations (Note: charge for initial 
inshop prepping only) 
Priority One Status On All Service Calls! 

I Spare computer onsite (Client purchase or Client replacement 
computer) 
Client Wiki article 
Client Visio network layout. 
Online Support Requests. 
After hour support number, after hour onsite additional costs at reduced 
hourly rate! 
Yearly Detailed Managed Services Agreement! 
3·year Contract length oftenn 

Qty 

Estimates containing only materials do not include labor that may become necessary in relation to said 
materials. This labor will be considered billable at HHIT's current rates, which can be found at 

Page2 

FOB 

Saint Charles 

Cost Total 

Subtotal 

Sales Tax (7.0%) 

Total 



Helping Hand IT Services & Networking, Inc. Estimate 
40W270 LaFox Road, Suite A 
St. Charles, IL 60175 Date Estimate# 

Phone: 630-940-1718 Fax: 630-940-1720 
www.helpinghand-it.com 1/18/2019 12269 

Name I Address Please note the following: This is an estimate and not a 
Village of Campton Hills firm bid. Your labor pricing could go up or down 
Attn: Mr. Hany Blecker depending on the actual time it takes. 40W270 LaFox Road (Suite-B) 
Campton Hills, IL 60175 

For HHIT's complete estimate terms, please visit 

630-584-5700 www.helpinghand-it.com/terms 

P.O. No. Terms Rep 

Verbal: TBD Net 15 DE 

Item 

Acceptance 

Description 

Easy ACH Payment, or Check Payment terms 
Take Advantage ofHH-IT Client Pooling for Your Low Cost Yearly IT 
Budget!!! 

Estimate is based on 36·month contract, invoiced on a monthly basis of 
$1,223.99 per month! 

Note: Further details and description of these items will be addressed in 
our contract. We have a detailed service license agreement that we will 
draw up once preliminarily accepted. 

Helping Hand IT Services & Networking (HHIT) is hereby authorized to 
perfonn the work as specified in this quotation. I agree to HHIT's estimate 
terms located at www.helpinghandpc.com/tenns. 

Customer Signature ---------------

Date: _____________ _ 

FOB 

Saint Charles 

Qty Cost Total 

0.00 

Estimates containing only materials do not include labor that may become necessary in relation to said 
materials. This labor will be considered billable at HHIT's current rates, which can be found at 

www.helpinghandRit.com/rates 

Subtotal $1,223.99 

$0.00 

$1,223.99 

Page 3 



COMPLHE CARE :PL11N COMPl\RlSON 

Included Services• Care 1 Care2 Full Complete Care 

Patch Management X X X 

Server System Monitoring X X X 

Priority Status on Support Calls X X X 

Feedback & Strategy Meetings X X X 

Client Internal Wiki Article X X X 

14-day Service Warranty X X X 

Daily Server Backup Monitoring X X X 

Client Portal on Website X X X 

Antivirus Protection X X X 

Equipment Loaner Service X X X 

Workstation Maintenance X X X 

Server Maintenance X X X 

Network Assessments X X X 

Open Manage Checks X X X 

24-Hour Emergency Support Calls** X X X 

Travel Fees Waived X X 

Recycling of old computer equipment and peripherals* X X 

Certified Hard Drive Erasing* X X 

Domain Name Renewal X X 

Malwarebytes X X 

Remote Call Support X 

Onsite Support X 

lnshop Service X 

Standard prep for new computers purchased through HHIT X 

Detailed Network Discovery and Diagram X 

Additional Services Available 

Offsite Backups from Synology 

Microsoft Hosted Exchange 

Skype for Business 

Microsoft Azure Cloud Server Hosting 

Microsoft Office 365 Product Subscriptions 

Email Spam Filtering and Monitoring 

Malwarebytes 

Backup Strategy Test and Review 

Computer Equipment Relocation Services 

Network Cabling 

New System Preparation 

REFRESH program for Servers, Workstations, and Hosted Environments 

Veeam Backup Solutions 

Colocation of Hosted Environments 

Website Hosting 

Firewall Renewal 

Server Warranty Renewal 

Workstation Warranty Renewal 

Dual Server Location 

*Applies to assets with existing Care Program coverage **After·hours support care will be billed in accordance with the terms of your contract 

Page 14 



Helping Hand IT Services and Networking 

Complete Care Services Agreement 

1. PARTIES 

Helping Hand IT Services and Networking, Inc. (hereinafter called "HHIT") for good and valid 
consideration agrees with The Village of Campton Hills & Village Police Department, (hereinafter called 
"Customer") to furnish and maintain certain computer-related services as provided in this Agreement. Both 
parties are entering into this three-year agreement on March 1, 2019 ending on February 28, 2022. Further 
this contract will auto renew for additional years beginning on March 1, 2022. 30-day written notice to cancel 
is necessary prior to each renewing year. 

2. INTRODUCTION 

WHEREAS, HHIT is in the business of managing computer and software systems; 

WHEREAS, Customer desires that HHIT manage and support, for the particular use of the Customer, certain 
hardware and software programs to be used by the Customer and supplied to Customer from sources other 
than HHIT; 

NOW, THEREFORE, in view of the covenants herein contained and the agreements hereunder taken, the 
parties hereto agree as follows: 

3. DEFINITIONS 

a. The term "Technology System" as used in this Agreement refers to the hardware and 
supported software owned by Customer which is used to operate the business. The hardware 
and supported software are specified in Exhibit A of this Agreement or any addendum hereto. 

b. The term "Supported Software" as used in this Agreement refers to software owned by 
Customer as specified in Exhibit A of this Agreement or any addendum hereto. 

c. The term "computing device" refers to any computer system that connects to the Technology 
System on a regular basis and performs a duty. 

d. The term "supported employee/system" refers to a computing device that is used on a regular 
basis by one or more employees. 

e. The term "Service Agreement" is defined as Total Information Technology Solution. Total, in 
this instance, is defined as managing from a remote location with quarterly on-site scheduled 
support based on a flat monthly rate, and emergency support available on demand based on a 
reduced hourly rate. 

f. Telephony System is defined as the customer's telephone switch (PBX), telephone sets, and 
other telephony devices which allow for analog and digital voice communication. 

g. VPN is defined as Virtual Private Network - This allows a user to connect to the main 
Technology System via a remote PC and temporarily join this Technology System as a member, 
thus giving this remote PC access to services in the Technology System. 

h. The term "3'• Party Support Providers" is defined as companies or entities that customer is 
currently in Agreement wijh or will be in Agreement with to provide other various support such as 
ERP, CRM, Telephony Systems, and/or ISPfTelephony Connection support. The list of 
customer's support choices shall be listed in Exhibit B. 

i. The term "other monthly support items" is defined as items that are normally supported by 
other third-party vendors such as ERP, CRM, and Telephony systems. If customer requests, 
HHIT will additionally support these items in the same manner that it supports the Technology 
System. Fees for "other monthly support items" are determined on a case by case basis. 

j. The term "Uptime" is defined as the amount of time the Technology System is functioning 
properly. 

k. The term "Field Medic Level Training" is defined as basic training on standard office software 
in order to get the employee to a relatively proficient state of productivity. 

I. The term "Liaison" means the customer's contact person with HHIT who will be responsible for 
the following tasks: 



Helping Hand IT Services and Networking 

CJ Changing back-up tapes, toner cartridges, etc. 
a Discerning basic user or computer problems or to call HHIT for technical support. HHIT 

will train the Liaison to perform this responsibility. 
CJ Performing other miscellaneous functions related to helping the Customer improve its' 

efficiency concerning computer systems. 
m. The term "normal business hours" means the hours of 8 a.m. to 5 p.m., Monday through Friday, 

excluding Holidays. 
n. The term "after-business hours" means all hours performed after 5 p.m. and before 8 a.m. 

Monday through Friday, and all hours on Saturday, Sunday and Holidays. 

4. PAYMENT 

a) The first month's payment under this agreement is due upon signing. See Exhibit D for 
details. 

b) Set Monthly Fee. Payments shall be made based on a set monthly fee as described in 
Exhibit-D. Invoices shall be processed and mailed on or before the 1st of each month by 
HHIT. Payment for services rendered shall be paid and delivered upon receiving said 
invoices by Customer before the 10'" of each month. Acceptable forms of payment include 
Cash, Check, ACH. 

c) Optional services. As described in Exhibit C, optional services are available. These 
services may be purchased at the reduced rates as shown in Exhibit C. These services will 
be billed bi-monthly. 

d) Hard Goods. Hard goods may be purchased by Customer from HHIT or directly by 
Customer. If hard goods are to be purchased directly by HHIT, payment is due before the 
goods are ordered. 

e) Mileage. There is NO CHARGE for mileage to and from HHIT and Customer. Mileage 
charges are built into the set monthly fee. 

f) Travel Time. This is NO CHARGE for travel time to and from HHIT and Customer. Travel 
time is built into the set monthly fee. 

g) Interest. All payments are due within ten days of the date of invoice. Any payment not made 
in a timely manner shall bear $75.00 per month late fee and interest at the rate of one and 
one-half (1 .5%! percent per month or fraction thereof, from the date of delinquency until the 
date of payment. 

5. TECHNOLOGY SYSTEM MANAGEMENT 

The parties recognize that operating the Technology System requires regular supervision, maintenance, 
upgrades, training, and research. Customer therefore agrees to appoint HHIT as their I.T. Management 
Staff. Customer understands that following the advice and instructions of HHIT in regard to the Technology 
System is necessary in order to maintain its' integrity. HHIT does not have authority to make purchases of 
hardware or software for Customer unless approved by the Customer in advance. 

HHIT agrees to provide a team of engineers and the CIO function to manage the Technology System. This 
team will manage this system in such a way that engineers will be proactively visiting customer on a regular 
basis. In addition, customer will have regularly scheduled technology planning meetings with the CIO. 

6. RESPONSE TIMES AND SERVICE LEVEL AGREEMENT (SLA) 

HHIT wishes to keep Customer's Technology System in peak operating performance. Therefore, HHIT will 
use all reasonable efforts to respond to customer problem tickets in the following manner: 

a) Low Priority Ticket: Respond within 4 business hours; Resolve within 3 business days 
b) Medium Priority Ticket: Respond within 2 hours; Resolve within 24 business hours 
c) High Priority Ticket: Respond within 30 minutes; Resolve the problem within 8 hours 

These resolution times assume that replacement equipment is either on hand at customer's site or can be 
ordered and received such that labor can be performed to meet the SLA. Further ticket priority levels will be 
determined by the HHIT Senior Technician or CIO. 

2 



Helping Hand IT Services and Networking 

7. CUSTOMER COOPERATION 

Customer shall provide reasonable access to its premises and hardware installations to enable HHIT the 
opportunity to maintain the Technology System. Customer also agrees to assign one employee to be 
Liaison or contact person to HHIT in order to make communications between both parties effective. 

The assigned Liaisons will be: Village of Campton Hills Phone: 630-584-5700 

8. CONFIDENTIALITY 

Mr. Ron Searl 
Mr. Tracy Johnson 
Chief Steve Millar 

Cell: 630-878-3058 
Cell: 630-865-1167 
Cell: 847-208-3400 

a. HHIT agrees to keep in confidence and not disclose to others the internal structure of Customer 
or its' marketing strategies, business processes, client information, personal information, 
documents, email, or any content whatsoever of Customer's electronic or paper documents. 

b. Customer agrees to limit access to the Technology System to those employees or consultants 
who require such access in order to use the Technology System in furtherance of the 
Customer's business. 

c. Customer shall take all reasonable precautions to maintain the confidentiality of the Technology 
System, but not less than that employed to protect its' own proprietary information. 

d. HHIT agrees to finger printing and background checks for all appointed technical personnel, and 
will make all technical personnel aware of this confidentiality agreement 

9. SERVICES PROVIDED 

The following is a list of services provided as part of the monthly flat-rate fee for the Complete Care Services 
Agreement: 

a) Chief Information Officer (CIO) 

1) HHIT will appoint a member of its staff to be Customer's CIO. 
2) Customer's CIO will be available when needed to advise, recommend, and direct the I.T. 

issues Customer faces. 
3) Customer may e-mail CIO to ask advice regarding Customer's "Technology System". 
4) CIO will perform periodic on-site meetings with the Customer 
5) At Customer's request, CIO can physically meet with, or have a teleconference-meeting 

with Customer's management or outside vendors, to determine the best way to handle 
technical decisions (i.e. Corporate Usage Policy, Employee Training, Accounting 
Systems, CRM Applications, Bar-coding systems, Telephone Service Providers, 
Telephone Systems, etc). 

b) Needs Assessment and Inventory Services 

1) Initially, HHIT will create a thorough inventory of all computer and computer-related 
equipment and all software owned by Customer and determine whether it is currently 
being used or not. 

2) Once HHIT establishes a good understanding of exactly what Customer does and who 
within Customer is responsible for each function. HHIT will determine what needs to be 
done to improve efficiency and reduce costs. 

3) HHIT will assess Customer's goals and based upon Customer's hardware and software 
(including hardware and software Customer intends to procure), HHIT will make 
recommendations to Customer to improve, enhance, and/or better utilize the Technology 
System in order to benefit Customer overall. 

3 



Helping Hand IT Services and Networking 

c) Research and Screening Services 

1) HHIT will constantly search for new and better ways for businesses to do business and 
receive profit. HHIT will share its research with Customer to allow Customer to make 
informed decisions to improve its success. 

2) In addition to HHIT's continual research, Customer may request that HHIT research a 
particular facet of a technology solution such as a new device, or software application. 
HHIT will research this new technology and report to Customer with its findings. 

3) HHIT will be available to help Customer perform screening of such providers and 
resellers Customer wishes to contact. If the provider/reseller proves the importance of 
a meeting with Customer, then HHIT may arrange such a meeting and attend as well. 
After the meeting HHIT is available to debrief with Customer and to give its opinion of 
the technology and service to be provided. 

d) Design and Planning Services 

1) If Customer does not have a Technology System or is planning a major upgrade to the 
existing Technology System, HHIT will plan and design the Technology System or 
changes to it for Customer. This Technology System may include t.ANs, WANs, VPNs, 
and even off-site resources in addition to standard hardware and software on site. 

2) If Customer already has an existing Technology System, HHIT will determine the best 
use of the Technology System and make recommendations. Recommendations will 
pertain to creating the best layout of the Technology System and to incorporate the most 
efficient use of resources. 

3) Planning also includes Server Room layout, if available, directory service design, backup 
procedures, disaster recovery measures, security measures, antivirus measures and 
passwords to different levels of information, Internet and Intranet concerns, and remote 
access and VPN capabilities. 

4) HHIT will help Customer through management meetings and the like, plan major 
upgrades to the Technology System including ERP, CRM solutions etc. 

e) Installation and Upgrade Services 

1) If there is an installation or major upgrade to the Technology System and the design and 
layout has been planned and approved by Customer, HHIT will, at the Customer's 
convenience, periorm the installations and upgrades. In most cases, HHIT will try to 
schedule this work during normal business hours however, after-business-hours and 
weekends are also available at AN EXTRA CHARGE to Customer. So long as the 
installation or major upgrade takes place during normal business hours, the installation 
or major upgrade are included as part of the monthly flat rate fee. However, if 
installation or major upgrade takes place during after-business hours, the work will be 
billed at the normal after-business hours' rates. 

2) In some cases, it may be better for Customer to have a third party install or upgrade a 
piece of the Technology System. However, HHIT will be available to oversee and 
literally watch the third party install or upgrade its piece to prevent the third party from 
making mistakes and damaging the Technology System. After which time HHIT will 
generate a report to the Customer on behalf of the Customer to explain the success 
and/or failure of the operation. 

f) Remote Help Desk Services 

1. HHIT provides full time system engineers on staff who have visited the Customer's 
site(s) and know Customer's Technology System. These engineers are available by 
telephone, facsimile, and electronic messaging during normal business hours to answer 

4 



Helping Hand IT Services and Networking 

questions from Customer's employee base. 
2. In addition to traditional support, HHIT will setup the ability to connect to the employee's 

Windows'" based system and remotely help/train the employee with their current task. 
3. HHIT reserves the right to notify Customer's management team that a particular 

employee may need professional training in the event that the employee is not capable 
of doing what they have been hired to do using technology. 

g) On Site Support Services 

1) HHIT will assume the responsibilities of making the Technology System as efficient as 
fiscally possible by the Customer. HHIT will provide support twenty-four hours a day, 
seven days a week. Customer will receive a mobile number as well as a technical 
support electronic address to use to send requests for support to HHIT. HHIT will 
respond as fast as possible to support Customer. 

2) An HHIT engineer will visit Customer's main site on a scheduled basis. The engineer 
will be engaged in management meetings, planning sessions, and will perform routine 
maintenance of the Technology System. In addition, the engineer will perform a walk 
through to make sure that each and every knowledge worker who uses the Technology 
System is able to work efficiently. If there are problems, the engineer will assess the 
degree of the problem and either perform an ensile fix, have a Remote Support 
Engineer contact the employee as soon as possible, or take measures to resolve the 
problem themselves by bringing in extra support, etc. 

3) The HHIT engineer will also perform Disaster Recovery measures. The engineer will 
train the Customer's Liaison to recognize messages from Remote Off-Site Back-Up 
software. Success or failure notices of backups will be emailed to the Customer's 
Liaison and to HHIT. The responsibility for maintaining error-free backups of customer 
data is shared jointly by Customer and HHIT. In the event Customer's Liaison sees 
backup failure notices, that information should be brought to the attention of HHIT 
engineers. The software licensing keys required for restoration of backed up data are 
held solely by Customer. 

h) Technology System Monitoring Services 

1) HHIT will monitor the Technology System for such problems as virus infection, internal 
and external security breaches, low system resources, improper employee usage, 
system failures etc. 

2) HHIT will help Customer management by discreetly supervising employee's use of the 
Internet and other services that are connected to the Technology System such as 
printing for personal use etc. 

3) If the Technology System fails, is breached or is infected, HHIT will dispatch support 
elements to try to repair, clean, or shutdown the problem. 

4) HHIT monitors the usage of the Technology System's capabilities. If the capabilities are 
getting close to being used at full capacity, HHIT will make recommendations to 
Customer. 

Devices monitored 
The following metrics will be measured on each covered device: 

Metric 
Processor utilization 
Disk space (system) 
Disk space (data) 

Alert Threshold 
> 90% for 15 minutes 
<2.0 GB 
<10% 

5 



Helping Hand IT Services and Networking 

Memory utilization 
Event Log 

i) Maintenance 

> 80% 
Critical event 

HHIT agrees to provide labor for quarterly maintenance services to attempt to correct any 
error reported by Customer and determined by HHIT, in its' sole discretion, to be in the 
Technology System for the term of this Agreement. Such services shall be provided in an 
expeditious manner possible and at no additional cost to the Customer. 

General maintenance shall include but is not limited to: 
Maintenance of your network file server(s): Performed by HHIT 
:>- Installation of relevant hot fixes, service packs, updates, etc. 
:.. Checking event logs for potential problems and taking corrective action 
:>- Verifying adequate memory utilization 
:.. Verifying acceptable process utilization 
:>- Verifying adequate hard drive space 
:>- Verifying battery backup systems attached to server(s) are functioning properly 
:>- Verification of RAID array health and status 
:>- Verifying proper startup of network services 

Maintenance of your network workstations: Performed by HHIT 
:>- Installation of relevant hot fixes, service packs, updates, etc. 
:>- Checking event logs for potential problems and taking corrective action 
:>- Verifying adequate memory utilization 
:>- Verifying acceptable process utilization 
:>- Verifying adequate hard drive space 
}> Discovery and elimination of "spyware" 

Maintenance of your network firewall: Performed by HHIT 
}> Verification that firewall hot fixes/firmware updates are installed 
:>- Verification that your system is less subject to access by unauthorized Internet users or 

hackers 

Maintenance of your anti-virus system: Performed by HHIT 
:>- Verifying that your anti-virus definitions are updating properly 
}> Verifying that your anti-virus is working properly 
}> Applying any necessary hot fixes, service packs, or software updates as they are 

released 

Maintenance of your Backup System: Performed by HHIT 

}> Monitoring and maintenance of your backup system to verify that backup jobs have 
completed successfully 

}> Performing "sample restores" to ensure that data is recoverable 

10. CUSTOMER SITE REQUIREMENTS 

Customer agrees to provide HHIT with regular and necessary infrastructure services required to provide the 
managed services described in this agreement. These include but are not limited to, network and internet 
connectivity, adequate hardware, adequate power, and remote access to covered devices. Remote access 
to these "covered" systems includes having access to the Management Console and the Remote Access 
Card on all servers included in this agreement. 

Customer Requirements: 

6 



Helping Hand IT Services and Networking 

High-speed (broadband or equivalent) internet access, Anti-virus software and signature update 
subscription, Hardware redundancy, Software license compliance, Hardware warranties, Managed 
switches, Offsite backup, Imaging of desktops and servers, Basic network documentation, Spam 
finering system or service. 

11. TRAINING SERVICES 

These items will be invoiced at a reduced hourly rate: 
1) HHIT will provide "Field Medic Level" training to Customer's employees on the industry 

standard software and hardware that Customer employs in its Technology System. 
2) HHIT will train the Customer's Liaison as to how to perform their basic duties such as 

reading offs~e backup status reports, changing printer toner etc. 
3) HHIT will train the Customer's employee staff to have a better understanding of 

Customer's Technology System acceptable usage policy. 
4) HHIT will train Customer's employee staff how to better cope with newer technologies 

that are being inserted into the Technology System such as Internet access, electronic 
messaging, etc. 

12. NETWORK DOCUMENTATION 

HHIT agrees to provide and maintain network documentation for Customer for the time period stated in this 
contract. Upon termination of this agreement, HHIT shall release all relevant documentation immediately to 
the Customer. 

Network documentation shall include but is not limited to: 

1. Periodic asset inventory collection 
2. Network map 
3. Configuration 
4. Administrative access methods 
5. All credentials 
6. Software licenses 
7. Internet Service Provider information 
8. Company contact information 

13. SOFTWARE UPDATE RELEASE SCHEDULE 

HHIT defines 5 levels of criticality for software updates and patches, as follows: 

Critical: An update that resolves security vulnerability whose exploitation could 
allow propagation of a worm or virus without user action. 
HHIT will test and approve or disapprove updates within 3 business days following 
notification of availability. Once approved, HHIT will initiate the deployment process 
as defined above in the RFC process. 

7 



Helping Hand IT Services and Networking 

Important: 

Moderate and Low: 

Service release: 

Major revision: 

Other updates: 

An update that resolves security vulnerability whose exploitation could 
result in compromise of the confidentiality, integrity, or availability of 
Client's data, or of the integrity or availabiltty of covered devices or 
services. An update that resolves a major functionality flaw or results in dramatically 
improved performance of the software. 

HHIT will test and approve or disapprove updates within 1 0 business days following 
notification of availability. Once approved, HHIT will initiate the deployment process 
as defined above in the RFC process. 

An update that resolves a security vulnerability whose exploitation can 
be mitigated to a significant degree by factors such as default 
configuration or auditing, or whose exploitation is extremely difficult or 
whose impact is minimal. An update that resolves a minor functionality flaw or 
results in marginally improved performance of the software. 

HHIT will test and approve or disapprove updates within 3 calendar months following 
notification of availability. Once approved, HHIT will initiate the deployment process 
as defined above in the RFC process. 

An update that adds major functionality to a software product or changes 
its functionality, or a bundled package of updates accumulated over the 
course of several months or years. Typically referred to as a service 
pack, service release, maintenance release, or functionality release, and 
identified by a change in the minor version number (ie. Adobe Photos hop 
6.0 to 6.1 ). Typically released by the vendor at no cost. 

HHIT will test and approve or disapprove the service release within 6 calendar 
months following notification of availability. Once approved, HHIT will initiate the 
deployment process as defined above in the RFC process. 

A major functionality upgrade identified by the vendor as a new version 
of the product, and which typically requires payment or maintenance 
contract to obtain. Typically identified by a change in the major version number (ie. 
Microsoft Windows 2000 to Microsoft Windows 2003). 

HHIT will test and approve or disapprove the major revision within 12 calendar 
months following notification of availability. Once approved, HHIT will submit a 
change request and will work with Client to determine any required architecture or 
functionality changes and define the implementation schedule. 

Driver updates, BIOS upgrades, firmware updates, and other update types not mentioned specifically 
elsewhere in this document, are installed only in the event that they are known or expected to resolve an 
open service request, if they are known or expected to resolve a critical security flaw in the current 
configuration, or if they are a prerequisite for a patch or other update being applied. 

14. WARRANTIES AND DISCLAIMERS 

WITH RESPECT TO THE SERVICES AND PRODUCTS PROVIDED TO CUSTOMER HEREUNDER, HHIT 
DOES NOT MAKE, AND HEREBY DISCLAIMS, ALL WARRANTIES OF ANY KIND WHATSOEVER, 
EXPRESS, IMPLIED AND STATUTORY. ALL IMPLIED WARRANTIES, INCLUDING, WITHOUT 
LIMITATION, IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR 
PURPOSE ARE HEREBY DISCLAIMED. THIS WAIVER DOES NOT APPLY TO ANY WARRANTIES 
PROVIDED BY THE MANUFACTURER OF EACH PRODUCT USED IN CUSTOMER'S TECHNOLOGY 

8 



Helping Hand IT Services and Networking 

SYSTEM. 

---------------(Customer Initials!) 

15. LIMITATION OF LIABILITY AND REMEDIES 

UNDER NO CIRCUMSTANCES SHALL HHIT BE LIABLE FOR SPECIAL, INCIDENTAL, OR 
CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, LOSS OF ANTICIPATED PROFITS 
OR LOSS RESULTING FROM BUSINESS DISRUPTION DUE TO FAULTY EQUIPMENT, EVEN IF HHIT 
HAS BEEN ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGES. UNLESS THE DAMAGES ARE 
SPECIFICALLY AND SOLELY ATIRIBUTED TO HHIT's NEGLIGENCE OR THAT OF ITS AGENTS OR 
EMPLOYEES. 

THE STATED WARRANTIES AND THE COMMITMENTS SET FORTH HEREIN ARE IN LIEU OF ALL 
OTHER OBLIGATIONS OR LIABILITIES ON THE PART OF HHIT FOR DAMAGES OR OTHER RELIEF, 
INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, SPECIAL, INDIRECT OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES THAT IN 
ANY WAY ARISE OUT OF OR IN CONNECTION WITH THE USE AND/OR THE PERFORMANCE OF ANY 
SOFTWARE. 

16. DEFAULTS AND TERMINATION 

A. Events resulting in Material Default 
1. HHIT shall be in material default under this Agreement if any of the following occur: 

(a) HHIT becomes insolvent or is a party to any voluntary bankruptcy or receivership 
proceeding, makes an assignment for a creditor, or there is any similar action that 
affects the affairs or property of HHIT; 

(b) HHIT is the subject of a petition or involuntary bankruptcy and such petition is not 
removed within ninety (90) days; 

(c) HHIT fails to materially perform or comply with the terms and conditions of this 
Agreement. This paragraph notwithstanding, Customer may terminate this contract for 
any reason with 30 days' written notice. In this event we will invoice 75% of remaining 
balance due on contract. 

2. Customer shall be in material defau~ under this Agreement if any of the following occurs: 
(a) Customer fails to make payment of any undisputed invoice wHhin thirty (30) calendar 

days after it is rendered; 
(b) Customer fails to materially perform or comply with the terms and conditions of the 

Agreement. 
B. The initial term of this Agreement will be for three (3) years following the execution date of this 

Agreement. This Agreement shall renew for additional one-year periods unless either party gives written 
notice of non-renewal in the eleventh (11th) month of the term. 

C. Termination of Notice. The party not in material default may terminate this Agreement by written 
notice to the other party if the other party has failed to cure a material default under this Agreement within 
thirty (30) days after receiving written notice specifically stating forth such material default. Upon termination, 
the terminating party shall have all rights under the Uniform Commercial Code or otherwise, whether at law 
or in equity, that may be available to it. The election of one remedy shall not exclude the election of another. 

17. GOVERNING LAW 

This Agreement shall be governed by and construed to be in accordance with the laws of the State of Illinois 

18. ASSIGNMENTS 

Neither this Agreement nor any rights hereunder may be assigned or otherwise transferred by either party, 
except to any corporation controlled by or under common control with the assigning party, or in connection 
with the acquisition of, or the sale of substantially all of, the assets of the business to which this Agreement 
pertains. 

9 



Helping Hand IT Services and Networking 

19. SEVERABILITY 

If any provision or provisions of this Agreement shall be held to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable, the 
validity, legality and unenforceability of the remaining provisions shall not in any way be affected or impaired 
thereby. 

20. FORCE MAJEURE 

HHIT shall not be in default under this Agreement because of any failure to perform in accordance with its 
terms and conditions if such failure arises from causes beyond its control, including, but not restricted to, acts 
of God, acts of government, fires, floods, epidemics, quarantine, restrictions, strikes, embargoes, inabilrty to 
secure raw materials or transportation facilities, acts or omissions of carriers, or any and all causes beyond 
control of HHIT. 

21. MODIFICATIONS 

This Agreement represents the full and complete agreement between the parties and may only be modified 
by a written Agreement duly signed by authorized representatives of HHIT and Customer. Variances from or 
in addition to the terms and conditions of this Agreement in any order or other writing from the Customer will 
be of no effect. Moreover, in order to avoid uncertainty, ambiguity and misunderstandings in their 
relationships, HHIT and Customer covenanted and agreed not to enter into any oral agreement or 
understanding inconsistent or in conflict with this Agreement; and HHIT and Customer further covenant and 
agree that any oral communication allegedly or purportedly constituting such an agreement or understanding 
shall be absolutely null, void and without effect. 

22. NOTICES 

Any notice given by either party hereto to the other party shall be in writing and shall be signed by the party 
giving notice. Any notice or other document to be delivered to erther party hereto by the other party shall be 
deemed delivered if mailed postage prepaid to the party to who directed at the address of such party stated 
below: 

Helping Hand IT Services and Networking 
40w270 LaFox Road Suite-A 
Campton Hills, IL 60175 

Customer: The Village of Campton Hills (Main Location) 
The Village of Campton Hills Police (Main Location) 
40W270 LaFox Road (Suite-B) 
Campton Hills, IL 60175 

23. VENUES AND JURISDICTION 

Customer hereby (i) agrees that any litigation, action or proceeding ans1ng out of or relating to this 
Agreement be instituted in the Sixteenth Judicial Circuity, Kane County, Illinois. (ii) waives any objection 
which it might have now or hereafter to venue of any such litigation, action or proceeding, (iii) irrevocably 
submits' to the jurisdiction of any court in such litigation, action or proceeding, and (iv) hereby waives any 
claim or defense to inconvenient forum. 

24. EXECUTION OF AGREEMENT 

This Agreement may be executed simultaneously in several counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an 
original but which together shall constitute one and the same original. The person executing this Agreement 
on behalf of Customer agrees and verifies they have authority to enter into this agreement on behalf of 
Customer. If the person executing this Agreement on behalf of Customer lacks the authority to enter into this 
Agreement on behalf of Customer, the person executing this Agreement shall be personally liable for all 

10 



Helping Hand IT Services and Networking 

amounts due and owing to HHIT under this Agreement. 

25. ENTIRE AGREEMENT 

This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties with respect to the subject matter 
hereof and supersedes all prior contemporaneous written or oral agreements and representations between 
the parties with respect thereto. This Agreement shall not be deemed to extinguish or mitigate any 
payments, which are owed to HHIT by Customer pursuant to the terms of any previous or other existing 
agreements between HHIT and Customer. Customer acknowledges that it has read this Agreement, 
understands it and agrees to be bound by its' terms and conditions. 

26. COLLECTION 

If it is necessary for HHIT to employ attorneys for the collection of amounts payable hereunder, all costs and 
expenses incident to such collection, including without limitation, reasonable fees of such attorneys, shall be 
added to the amount payable hereunder and be collected as a part thereof. 

27. CAPTIONS AND HEADINGS 

The captions and headings are inserted in this Agreement for convenience only, and in no event be deemed 
to define, limit or describe the scope or intent of this Agreement, or of any provision hereof, nor in any way 
affect the interpretation of this Agreement. 

II 



Helping Hand IT Services and Networking 

EXECUTION 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have hereunto set their hands and seal this 1st, day of March 2019. 

CUSTOMER: The Village of Campton Hills Helping Hand IT Services and Networking 

Signature:------------ Signature:----------

Printed Name:----------- Printed Name:---------

Title: -------------- Title:------------

Date:-------------- Date:------------

Signature:-------------

Printed Name:-----------

Title: _____________ _ 

Date:--------------

12 



Helping Hand IT Services and Networking 

EXHIBIT A 

The "Technology System" as described in this Agreement consists of software and hardware items: 

Per asset management sheet as of March 1, 2019. (Reference EXHIBIT A) 

13 



Helping Hand IT Services and Networking 

EXHIBITS 

Customer 3" Party Support Providers 

Telephony Systems Support Provider: (i.e.: PBX Switch reseller) 

Name: First Comm 

Contact Name: Patrick Cupp 

Contact Number: 630418·1214 

Telephony Connection Support Provider: 

Name: First Comm 

Contact Name: Patrick Cupp 

Contact Number: 630418-1214 

Internet Service & Support Provider: 

Name: Comcast 

Contact Name: None 

Contact Number: In wiki article at HHIT 

Webhosting Service Provider: 

Name: TBD 

Contact Name: 

Contact Number: 

ERP (Enterprise Resource Planning) System Support Provider: 

Name: TBD 

Contact Name: 

Contact Number: 

CRM (Customer Relationship Management) System Support: 

Name: TBD 

Contact Name: 

Contact Number: 

14 



Helping Hand IT Services and Networking 

EXHIBITC 

Optional Services Include: 

Wire Drop Installation - Install Network Wiring and Telephone Wiring into a building. General pricing is 
approximately $150 per cable drop. Cable drops are from one location to another in the same building which 
are terminated by termination devices and faceplates. Estimates are provided per client request. 

Custom Programming and Solution Development: - HHIT offers custom solutions development to create an 
enhancement or piece of software that a customer may use to help them better pursue their business. Some 
examples of how you might benefit from these services include: 
•writing connector software that can pull data out of one HHIT system and translate it into another system. 
•custom database applications 
•custom Web Applications 
•custom Reporting from ERP and CRM applications 

Optional Service Rates: 

• HHIT Normal Business Hours (NBH): Monday to Friday, 8 AM to 5 PM 

• HHIT After Hours (AH) Monday to Friday, after 5 PM, 
All Day Saturday and Sunday 
All Holidays 

• Rates: NBH 

0 

0 

AH 

• Minimums: 

Reduced rates as listed below 
Monday to Friday, after 5 PM are billed at 150% of reduced rates listed below 
Saturday, Sunday and Holidays are billed at 200% of reduced rates listed below. 

All work outside of NBH has a two-hour minimum 

Complete Care client reduced hourly rates: 

1. Server ensile rate 
2. Server In-shop or remote rate 
3. Workstation ensile rate 
4. Workstation remote rate 
5. Workstation In-shop rate 
6. Website rate 
7. Website consultation 
8. Cabling services 
9. Prepping of new computers 
10. Messenger services: 

Following items are not covered under this Complete Care contract. 

$140.00 per hour 
$120.00 per hour 
$110.00 per hour 
$110.00 per hour 
$90.00 per hour 
$95.00 per hour 
$75.00 per hour 
$105.00 per hour 
$90.00 per hour 
Invoice per requirement. 

Rates available upon request, and ongoing services can be added to your monthly Complete Care 
contract. 

1. Website design 
2. Website development 
3. Website branding 
4. Cell phone services 
5. Messenger services 
6. RMA shipping services 
7. Webhosting services 
8. Cabling or Telephone services 

15 



Helping Hand IT Services and Networking 

EXHIBITD 

Initial fee calculation: 

Monthly Onsite/Remote Maintenance Service 

Per asset management sheet as of March 1, 2019. (Reference EXHIBIT A) 

Customer Initials Date 

Customer Initials Date 

Customer Initials Date 

SERVICE AGREEMENT Monthly fee calculation 

Monthly Maintenance Service Program Products include the following: 
Per estimate #12269 

1) MalwareBytes Workstations 
2) MalwareBytes Server 
3) Monitoring, Anti-Virus Protection Workstations 
4) Monitoring, Anti-Virus Protection Server 
5) Veeam Backup Software Server 
6) Microsoft Hosted Exchange Plan #1 & Plan #2 Licenses 
7) Microsoft Office 365 Business Licenses 
8) SonicWall Renewals 

Total Monthly Cost: $1,223.99 

Customer agrees to pay the amount above of this exhibit monthly. This exhibit will be amended on a month 
by month basis as the Customer grows or shrinks in size or adds additional services. Example: Computers, 
switches, routers, larger offsite backup. By your initials below we will increase or decrease your monthly 
costs. Email notification will confirm your cost changes. 

Customer Initials Date 

Customer Initials Date 

Customer Initials Date 

16 


